

THE KENYA GAZETTE

Published by Authority of the Republic of Kenya

(Registered as a Newspaper at the G.P.O.)

Vol. CXXVI-No. 50

NAIROBI, 19th April, 2024

Price Sh. 60

	TENTS
GAZETTE NOTICES PAGE	GAZETTE NOTICES—(Contd.)
The National Council for Law Reporting Act— Appointment 1378	The Crops Act—Proposed Grant of Licences
The Proceeds of Crime and Anti-Money Laundering Act—Appointment, etc	The Labour Relations Act—Amendment of the Constitution of the Amalgamated Union of Kenya Metal Workers (AUKMW), etc
The Public Service Superannuation Scheme Act— Appointment 1378	The Environmental Management and Co-ordination Act— Environmental Impact Assessment Study Reports
The Civil Aviation Act—Appointment 1378–1379	Transfer of Businesses Act—Business Transfer
The Affordable Housing Act—Appointment	The Insolvency Act—Petition for Liquidation, etc
The Estate Agents Act—Appointment	Disposal of Uncollected Goods 1421
The Physical Planners Registration Act—Appointment 1379	Change of Names
The Wildlife Conservation and Management Act—Result of Audit of Government Trophies for 2023	SUPPLEMENT Nos. 70, 71 and 78
County Governments Notices 1379-1380, 1404-1406, 1423	Legislative Supplements, 2024 LEGAL NOTICE NO. PAGE
The Land Registration Act—Issue of Provisional Certificates, etc	54—The Affordable Housing Act—Commencement 847 55–62—The Fisheries Management and Development
Statement of Actual Revenues and Net Exchequer Issues as at 28th March, 2024	(Beach Management Units) Regulations, 2024, etc
The East African Community Customs Management Act—Appointment and Limits of Transit Shed, Customs	63—The Privileges and Immunities (Oxfam International) Order, 2024
Areas, etc. 1406	
The Judicial Service Act.—The Judicial Service (Tribunal Appointed Under Article 168 (5) (b) of the Constitution). 1406–1409	SUPPLEMENT Nos. 72, 73 and 74
he Teachers Service Commission Act—Names of Teachers Removed and Deregistered from the Register of	Senate Bills, 2024
Teachers Following Disciplinary Process	PAGE
he AdvocatesAct—133rd Quarterly Report	The Labour Migration and Management Bill, 2024 225
he Water Act-Public Consultation Meetings on	The Constitution of Kenya (Amendment) Bill, 2024 261
Licensing of Water Service Providers	The Fisheries Management and Development Bill, 2024 267

APPOINTMENT

IN EXERCISE of the powers conferred by section 10 of the Mombass County Local Tourism Act, 2017, the County Executive Committee Member responsible for matters relating to Tourism appoints—

Sam Ikwaye (Dr.), Sukaina Alhusseiny, Nafiali Biwott, Jennifer Wanzina, Patrick Kamanga, Rehab Nderu, Fatma Twahir, Jacqueline Jepkoech, Tom Odhiambo, Fiena Ngesa, Japheth Omondi,

to the Mombasa County Local Tourism Council, with effect from the 2nd April, 2024, for a period of three (3) years.

Dated the 8th April, 2024.

MOHAMED O. ALI.

MR/Omokonda

CECM for Tourism, Culture and Trade.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 4658

THE VALUATION FOR RATING ACT

(Cap. 266)

THE NYERI MUNICIPALITY VALUATION COURT (2024)

CERTIFICATION OF THE NYERI MUNICIPALITY PRIVATE AND PUBLIC VALUATION ROLLS 2019

IN EXERCISE of the powers conferred by section 17 (4) of the Valuation for Rating Act, Cap. 266, notice is given for the information of the general public that, following the hearing and determination of all objections lodged against the Nyeri Municipality Private and Public Draft Valuation Rolls for 2019, the Chairman of the Nyeri Municipality Valuation Court (2024) has duly signed the certificate endorsing the amendments effected on the said rolls.

Notice is further given that, in accordance with section 19 (a) of the Valustion for Rating Act, any appeal against a decision made by the Nyeri Municipality Valuation Court (2024), may be brought before the Environment and Land Court (Nyeri) by an objector who may be aggrieved by the decision made by the Nyeri Municipality Valuation Court (2024), within thirty (30) days from the date of this notice.

Dated the 19th April, 2024.

RUTH W. MBURU,

MR/6162913

Clerk, Nyeri Municipality Valuation Court.

GAZETTE NOTICE No. 4659

THE EAST AFRICAN COMMUNITY CUSTOMS MANAGEMENT ACT, 2004

APPOINTMENT AND LIMITS OF TRANSIT SHED, CUSTOMS AREAS, ETC.

PURSUANT to section 12 of the East African Community Customs Management Act, 2004, the Commissioner of Customs and Border Control appoints the following Customs areas, etc:

- (a) The place specified in the first column of the Pirst Schedule, as a customs area for the purposes of the Act and the limits shall be those set out in the second column of that Schedule;
- (b) The places specified in the first column of the Second Schedule of the customs area for the purposes set out in the third column of the Schedule, limits shall be those set out in the second column of the Schedule.

FIRST SCHEDULE

Appointment and limits of the Customs Area.

Place	Limits		
SEZ Limited as	The area on Plot LR No. MN/V/737 in Kibarani, Mombasa County within the area marked FREEPORT 'A' bounded coordinates -4.03230 S		

Place	Limits
Place	39.64882 E, -4.03036 S 39.64956 E, -4.03021 S 39.64716 E, -4.03154 S 39.64716 E, -4.03173 S 39.64765 E, -4.031239 S 39.64744 E on the Mitchell Cotts SEZ Limited Layout Plan (deposited in the office of the Commissioner of Customs and Border Control) The area on Plot LR No. MN/V/2397 and LR No. MN/V/2398 in Kibarani, Mombasa County within the area marked FREEPORT 'B' bounded coordinates -4.030002 S 39.645949 E, -4.029852 S 39.646667 E, -4.030205 S 39.646861 E, -4.031821 S 39.645659 E, -4.031400 S 39.644906 E, -
	4.031846 S 39.645960 E, -4.031931 S 39.645924 E, -4.031749 S 39.645533 E on the Mitchell Cotts SEZ Limited Layout Plan (deposited in the office of the Commissioner of Customs and Border Control)

SECOND SCHEDULE

Appointment of Entry and Exit to and from the Customs Area.

Place	Limits	Purpose	
Mitchell Cotts SEZ Limited as a Customs Area	FREEPORT 'A' The area within the coordinates - 4.032276 S 39.647630 E, -4.032254 S 39.647668 E on the Mitchell Cotts SEZ Limited Layout Plan (deposited in the office of the Commissioner of Customs and Border Control) FREEPORT 'B'	Entry Exit	and
	The area within the coordinates - 4.0313371 S 39.6448869 E, - 4.031449 S 39.644903 E, - 4.031764 S 39.645598 E, -4.031791 S 39.645657 E on the Mitchell Cotts SEZ Limited Layout Plan (deposited in the office of the Commissioner of Customs and Border Control)		

Dated the 17th April, 2024.

LILIAN NYAWANDA (DR.),

PTG/2250/23-24

Commissioner of Customs and Border Control.

GAZETTE NOTICE No. 4660

THE JUDICIAL SERVICE ACT

(No. 1 of 2011)

THE PUDICIAL SERVICE (TRIBUNAL APPOINTED UNDER ARTICLE 168 (5) (b) OF THE CONSTITUTION TO INQUIRE INTO THE CONDUCT OF HON JUSTICE MOHAMMED NOOR KULLOW, JUDGE OF THE ENVIRONMENT AND LAND COURT, ON THE GROUNDS FOR REMOVAL OF A JUDGE UNDER ARTICLES 168 (1) (b) AND 168 (1) (c) OF THE CONSTITUTION) RULES OF PROCEDURE, 2024

IN EXERCISE of powers conferred under section 31 (5) of the Judicial Service Act, 2011, the Tribunal appointed to inquire into the conduct of the Hon. Justice Mohammed Noor Kullow, Judge of the Environment and Land Court, from office on the grounds for removal of a judge under Articles 168 (1) (b) and 168 (1) (e) of the Constitution, vide Gazette Notice No. 2536 of 2024, makes the following rules—

Citation

 These Rules may be cited as the Judicial Service (Tribunal to Inquire into the Conduct of Justice Mohammed Noor Kullow) Rules of Procedure, 2024.

Interpretation

2. In these Rules, unless the context otherwise requires -

"Act" means the Judicial Service Act. 2011:

"Assisting counsel" means counsel appointed by the President of the Republic pursuant to section 31 (4) of the Act;

"Chairperson" means the Chairperson of the Tribunal;

"Hearing" means a sitting of the Tribunal for the purpose of receiving evidence, hearing submissions from a party, delivering a decision, or doing anything lawfully required to enable the Tribunal to reach a decision, on any matter before it;

"Judge" means Hon. Justice Mohammed Noor Kullow who is the subject of the investigations of the Tribunal;

"Member" means a member of the Tribunal:

"Register" means the register in which pleadings and supporting documents and all orders and decisions of the Tribunal are kept in accordance with these Rules:

"Registry" means the registry of the Tribunal;

"Secretary" means the person appointed by the President to carry out the functions set out in rule 4:

"Tribunal" means the tribunal appointed to inquire into the conduct of Justice Mohammed Noor Kullow, Judge of the Environment and Land Court; and

"Vice-Chairperson" means the person elected pursuant to section 31 (2) of the Judicial Service Commission Act, 2011.

Chairperson

- The Chairperson shall co-ordinate the work of the Tribunal and be responsible for—
 - (a) constituting such panel or panels of the Tribunal as may be necessary for the fair and expeditious disposal of the businessof the Tribunal;
 - (b) assigning the business of the Tribunal to the members;
 - (c) supervising the activities of the Secretary and Registry; and
 - (d) exercising all other functions contemplated by Article 168 of the Constitution or conferred by the Act and these Rules.

Secretary

- (1) In relation to the proceedings before the Tribunal, the Secretary shall act in accordance with the instructions of the Chairperson and, in particular, be responsible for—
 - (a) the establishment and maintenance of the Register and Registry:
 - (b) the acceptance, transmission, service and custody of documents in accordance with these Rules;
 - (c) the enforcement of decisions of the Tribunal;
 - (d) certifying the orders, directions or decisions of the Tribunal;
 - (e) causing records of the proceedings and minutes of the meetings of the Tribunal and such other records as the Tribunal may direct, to be kept;
 - (f) performing any other duties assigned by the Tribunal for the purposes of the Tribunal;
 - (g) summoning of witnesses;
 - (h) the recruitment and supervision of staff of the Tribunal; and
 - the management and co-ordination of the operations, staff, finances and physical facilities in support of the Tribunal.
- (2) The Secretary may, with the approval of the Chairperson, consider and dispose of procedural or administrative matters in accordance with these Rules.
- (3) A party may, within seven days of any action taken by the Secretary, request in writing that the Secretary's action be reviewed bythe Tribunal.
- (4) Any administrative function of the Secretary may, in the Secretary's absence, be performed by any member of staff of the Tribunal whom the Chairperson may authorize for that purpose.

(5) The Secretary shall have such other powers similar to those of aRegistrar as set out under Order 49 of the Civil Procedure Rules, 2010, with such modifications as may be necessary.

Quorum for Hearings and other Business of the Tribunal

- (1) The quorum necessary for the conduct of the hearings of the Tribunal shall be the Chairperson and four other members.
- (2) In the absence of the Chairperson, the quorum necessary for the conduct of the hearings of the Tribunal shall be the Vice-Chairperson and four other members.
- (3) The quorum necessary for the conduct of any other business of the Tribunal shall be the Chairperson and three other members.
- (4) In the absence of the Chairperson, the business of the Tribunal may be carried on by the Vice-Chairperson and three other members.

Tribunal to uphold Principle of Substantial Justice

- (1) The Tribunal shall interpret the provisions of these Rules in amanner that promotes the principle of substantial justice.
- (2) Any irregularity resulting from failure to comply with any provision of these Rules shall not in itself render the proceedings void or invalid if the irregularity does not occasion a miscarriage of justice.
- (3) Where any such irregularity comes to the attention of the Tribunal, the Tribunal may, where it determines that any person may have been prejudiced by the irregularity, give such directions as maybe just, to cure the irregularity.
- (4) Clerical mistakes in any document recording a direction, order or decision of the Tribunal, or errors arising in such a document from an accidental slip or omission, may be corrected by the Chairperson, by certificate under the Chairperson's hand.

Powers of Tribunal not Affected or Limited

Nothing in these Rules shall be deemed to limit or otherwise affect any of the powers of the Tribunal necessary for the proper execution of its mandate.

Service of Notice

- 8. (1) The Tribunal shall serve on the Judge a hearing notice at least fourteen days before the date of the first hearing and for subsequent hearings, at least seven days, unless the date of the subsequent hearing is otherwise mutually agreed upon by all the parties.
- (2) Assisting counsel shall draw up a list of the allegations against the Judge together with a summary of the evidence in support of the allegations and shall serve the document containing the allegations and the summary of the evidence on the Judge at least fourteen days beforethe first date of hearing.
- (3) Service upon the Judge shall be effected through his appointed legal counsel (if any) or personal service or if unable to serve the Judge through his appointed counsel or in person, through a duly appointed court process server.

Hearings

- (1) The hearings of the Tribunal shall be held in camera except where the Judge opts to have the hearings in public.
- (2) The Tribunal may exclude any person or class of persons from all or any part of the hearing if satisfied that it is desirable so to do for—
 - (a) the preservation of order; or
 - (b) the due conduct of the investigation; or
 - (c) the protection of any witness in the investigation or any person referred to in the course of the investigation or the property or reputation of such witness or person.
- (3) The Tribunal may, for the reasons specified in sub rule (2), order that no person shall publish the name, address or photograph of any witness or person or any evidence or information whereby he or she would or may be identified.

Right to be Present at Hearings and Representation

10. The Judge shall have the right to be present during all the hearings that relate to him and shall be entitled to legal representation.

Assisting Counsel to present Evidence

 Assisting counsel shall present evidence relating to the conduct of the Judge and any matter relevant to the investigation.

Summoning of Witnesses

- 12. (1) The Tribunal may summon any person or persons to testify before it on oath or to produce such documents as the Tribunal may require, and the person so summoned shall be obliged to attend and to testify or produce the required documents and the provisions applying to witnesses summoned by ordinary courts of law shall apply to such person.
- (2) Any request by assisting counsel or the Judge for the Tribunal to exercise its discretion under subparagraph (1) shall be in writing and shall be addressed to the Secretary.
- (3) Subject to subparagraph (1), the Tribunal may issue a warrantin accordance with section 46 of the Judicial Service Act to apprehend any witness or witnesses who fail to honour the summons issued.

Tribunal not Bound by Strict Rules of Evidence

13. The Tribunal shall not be bound by the strict rules of evidence but shall be guided by the rules of natural justice.

Right to Cross-Examine Witnesses

 The Judge shall have the right to cross-examine any witness during the hearings.

Right to Call Evidence and Personal Appearance

- 15. (1) The Judge shall be entitled to testify or call evidence torebut allegations made against him.
- (2) The Judge duly served may elect not to attend in person or by counsel or at all, in which case the Tribunal shall be entitled to consider the evidence available and make a report and appropriate recommendations.

Cross Examination of Witnesses

- 16. (1) The Tribunal and assisting counsel shall be entitled to examine the subject and any witnesses appearing before the Tribunal.
- (2) The Tribunal shall have the power to recall any witness.

Form of Evidence

- 17. (1) Evidence before the Tribunal may be presented orally or in the form of a memorandum, affidavit, document and in any other electronic or digital format, and the Tribunal shall be entitled to receive such documents and to use the contents thereof in forming its opinion.
- (2) The Judge shall be furnished with copies of any documentary, electronic, digital or oral evidence and shall be entitled to cross- examine the deponent or maker of any such affidavit or document tendered as evidence.
- (3) Where documentary evidence against the Judge is provided to the Tribunal, the evidence shall be served on the Judge at least seven days or such period as the Tribunal may determine appropriate before the hearing at which the evidence shall be considered.
- (4) In estimating the weight, if any, to be attached to electronic and digital evidence, the Tribunal shall have regard to—
 - (a) the reliability of the manner in which the electronic and digitalevidence was generated, stored or communicated;
 - (b) the reliability of the manner in which the integrity of the electronic and digital evidence was maintained;
 - (c) the manner in which the originator of the electronic and digitalevidence was identified; and

- (d) any other relevant factor.
- (5) The Tribunal may admit such persons specially skilled on a subject or fact relevant to the proceedings to give an opinion on such subject or fact.

Submissions

18. At the close of the hearing of all evidence before the tribunal, Counsel assisting the Tribunal and the Judge or his counsel shall be entitled to make written and/or oral submissions.

Delivery of Decisions

- 19. (1) All decisions of the Tribunal shall be in writing and shall contain a concise statement of the investigation, the points for determination, the decision thereon, and the reasons for such decision upon each separate issue.
 - (a) The decisions of the Tribunal shall be carried by a simple majority of members present.
 - (b) The final decision of the Tribunal shall be carried by a majority of the members of the Tribunal.
- (2) The final decision of the Tribunal shall be submitted to the President and thereafter made in public on a date affixed for that purpose but not later than fourteen (14) days after conclusion of the proceedings.
- (3) Where a member, for reasons either beyond his or her controlor the control of the Tribunal, is unable to sign the decision of the Tribunal, the reason shall be recorded, and the decision signed by the other members.
- (4) The Secretary shall on delivery of the decision under subparagraph (2) cause the decision of the Tribunal to be published in the Gazette and posted on the Tribunal's website.

Sittings of the Tribunal

 The Tribunal shall sit on such days, and at such times and venues as it may determine.

Registry Hours

21. The Registry shall be open for business from Monday to Fridayfrom 8:30 am to 4:30 pm but may be open at other times for urgent business at the direction of the Chairperson.

Summonses to be signed by Secretary

22. Summonses issued by the Tribunal shall be endorsed by and bear the signature of the Secretary.

Recording of Proceedings

23. The Chairperson shall cause to be taken notes of all proceedings before the Tribunal or may direct that the record of any proceedings before the Tribunal be taken by shorthand notes or tape recorded or, at the discretion of the Tribunal, electronically recorded.

Practice Directions

24. The Chairperson may issue Practice Directions for the just, efficient and economical determination of proceedings under these Rules, and the Practice Directions so issued shall be special rules of practice and procedure of the Tribunal.

Extension of Time

25. The Tribunal may, for sufficient cause shown, extend the time prescribed by these Rules for doing any act or taking any proceedings upon such terms and conditions, if any, as may appear just and expedient.

Amendment of Rules

26. The Tribunal may, from time to time, by notice in the Gazette, amend the provisions of these Rules.

General Powers of Tribunal

- (1) Subject to the provisions of these Rules, the Tribunal may regulate its own procedure.
- (2) Nothing in these Rules shall limit or otherwise affect the inherent power of the Tribunal conferred by Article 168 of the

Constitution either on its own motion or on the application of a party to make such orders as may be necessary for the ends of justice or to prevent abuse of the process of the Tribunal.

> HON. JUSTICE PATRICK O. KIAGE, Chairperson.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 4661

THE PROCEEDS OF CRIME AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING ACT

(No. 9 of 2009)

FORFEITURE

IN EXERCISE of the powers conferred by section 92 (5) of the Proceeds of Crime and Anti-Money Laundering Act, 2009, the Registrar High Court gives notice to:

- (a) Abdulmajid Msallam Timami (b) Said Mselem Abdallah

THAT the High Court has issued Forfeiture Orders in High Court Civil Suit (Anti-Corruption and economic crimes Division) No. E15 of 2023 as specified in the Schedule hereto:

SCHEDULE

REPUBLIC OF KENYA

IN THE HIGH COURT AT MILIMANI

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND ECONOMIC CRIMES DIVISION ACEC SUIT E15 OF 2023 CONSOLIDATED WITH ACEC SUIT E19 OF 2023

ASSETS RECOVERY AGENCY Applicant

VERSES

ABDULMAJID MSALLAM TIMAMI Ist Respondent SAID MSELEM ABDALLAH 2nd Respondent

DECREE

CLAIMS FOR IN THE APPLICATION DATED 12TH JUNE, 2023 IN ACEC SUIT E15 OF 2023.

- THAT this Honourable court be pleased to issue an order declaring that all the motor vehicles listed as follows are proceeds of crime.
 - (a) KAZ 161M, Prime Mover
 - (b) KCC 232R, DBA-ACA33W, Van Guard
 - (c) KCT 180M, CR-V, S. Wagon
 - (d) KAE 005A, CWC, Lorry/Truck
 - (e) KCV 459T, Legacy Wagon
 - (f) KCQ 854X, Axor, Prime Mover
 - (g) KBQ 410Y, CBE-NCP51V, S. Wagon
 - (h) KCL 444U, Prime Mover 2543
 - (i) KCP 632F, Actross 2448, Prime Mover
 - (i) ZF 6293, Doll Trailer
 - (k) ZF 8270, Trailer-Skeleton
- THAT this Honourable court be pleased to issue, an order declaring that all the land parcels listed below and alldevelopments thereon are proceeds of crime.
 - (a) L/R No. Mombasa/Mwembelegeza/1385
 - (b) C.R 66464. MN/Section II /14173 (Orig No. 14152/22) survey plan number 371828 within Mombasa municipality, municipality,

- (c) C.R 65470. MN/Section II /14171 (Orig No. 14152/20) survey plan number 371826 within Mombasa
- (d) C.R 66469. MN/Section II /14170 (Orig No. 14152/19) survey plan number 371825 within Mombasa Municipality.
- THAT this Honourable court be pleased to issue an order that the motor vehicles listed in prayer 1 be forfeited to the Assets Recovery Agency (the Applicant herein).
- THAT this Honourable court be pleased to issue an order that the properties and development thereon listed in prayer 2 be forfeited to the Assets Recovery Agency (the Applicant herein).
- THAT this Honourable court be pleased to issue as order that directing the Director National Transport and Safety Authority to effect transfer the motor vehicles in prayer I above to the Applicant (Assets Recovery Agency).
- THAT this Honourable court be pleased to issue a vesting order directing the Chief Land Registrar/ Land Registrar Mombasa to effect transfer of land parcels in prayer 2 above to the Applicant (Assets Recovery Agency).
- THAT this Honourable court do make any other ancillary orders it considers appropriate to facilitate the transfer of the property forfeited to the Government.
- THAT costs be provided for.

CLAIMS FOR IN THE APPLICATION DATED 7TH AUGUST. 2023 IN ACEC SUIT E19 OF 2023.

- THAT this Honourable court be pleased to issue, an order declaring that all that income accruing from the development on the parcels of land percels listed below are proceeds of crime.
 - (a) C.R. 66464. MN/Section II /14173 (Orig No. 14152/22) survey plan number 371828 within Mombasa municipality.
 - (b) C.R. 65470. Registered as C.R. 64557/36, MN/Section II /14171 (Orig No. 14152/20) survey plan number 371826 within Mombasa Municipality.
 - (c) C.R. 66469. Registered as CR 64557/35, MN/Section II/14170 (Orig No. 14152/19) survey plan number 371825 within Mombasa Municipality.
- THAT this Honourable court be pleased to issue an order that all that income accruing from the developments on the land parcels of the land parcels listed in prayer 1 above be forfeited to the Assets Recovery Agency (the Applicant herein).
- THAT this Honourable court do make any other ancillary order it may deem fit for the proper, fair effective execution of its orders.
- 4. THAT costs be provided for.

THIS MATTER coming up for judgment before Honourable Lady Justice E. N. Maina on 20th March, 2024 for applications by the Applicant dated the 12th June, 2023 and 7th August, 2023 brought under sections 81, 82, 90 and 92 of the Proceeds of Crime and Anti-Money Laundering Act (POCAMLA) and Order 51 Rule 1 of the Civil Procedure Rules and all enabling provisions of the law, in the presence of Counsel for the Applicant and Counsel for the Respondents;

IT IS HEREBY DECREED:

- THAT judgment be and is hereby entered for the Applicant against the 1st and 2nd Respondents as follows:
 - (a) THAT a declaration be and is hereby issued that the following motor vehicles are proceeds of crime: KAZ 161M, KCC 232R, KCT 180M, KAE 005A, ZF 6293, ZF 8270, KCQ 834X, KCV 459T, KCP 632F, KCL 444U, KBQ
 - (b) THAT the foretasted vehicles be and are hereby forfeited to the Government of Kenya.
- (c) THAT in order be and is hereby issued directing the Director of the National Transport and Safety Agency to effect transfer of the vehicles to the Applicant.

